
   

 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 
 

 

 

 

 

AER Subcommittee Meeting 

September 26, 2019 

 



   Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee - 
                                      Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 

1. PowerPoint Presentation 

2. Agenda – September 26, 2019 

3. AER Subcommittee Meeting Minutes – May 14, 2019 

4. FY 2019-20 Pavement Management Plan Review Summary 

5. FY 2019-20 Pavement Management Plan Certifications 

6. FY 2019-20 Congestion Management Program Review Summary 

7. FY 2019-20 Congestion Management Program Checklists 

8. FY 2019-20 Mitigation Fee Program Review Summary 



   

BINDER 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 
 

 

 

 

 

PowerPoint Presentation 

 



ANNUAL ELIGIBILITY REVIEW (AER) 

SUBCOMMITTEE
SEPTEMBER 26, 2019



MEASURE M2 ELIGIBILITY OVERVIEW
JOE ALCOCK



ELIGIBILITY OVERVIEW

 Measure M2 is a 30-year, multi-billion dollar program.

 Offers variety of funding programs for transit, freeways, and 
streets and roads. 

 OCTA determines if a local jurisdiction is eligible for M2 funding 
on an annual basis. 

 Agencies must meet 13 eligibility requirements to be eligible for 
M2 Net Revenues.

 TOC reviews 5 of the 13 eligibility requirements.

 AER Subcommittee has been designated by the TOC to receive 
and review the 5 eligibility requirements. 



AER SUBCOMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Reviews the following 5 eligibility requirements: 

 Congestion Management Program (CMP)

 Mitigation Fee Programs (MFP)

 Expenditure Reports 

 Local Traffic Signal Synchronization Plans (LSSP)

 Pavement Management Plans (PMP)

 Recommend jurisdictions to the Audit subcommittee annually for 

compliance with Measure M2 Ordinance. 



OTHER ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

 Remaining eligibility requirements reviewed by OCTA staff:

 Adopt and update a Capital Improvement Program 

 Adopt a General Plan Circulation Element consistent with Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH)

 Satisfy Maintenance of Effort requirements

 Agree that Net Revenues shall not be used to supplant developer funding

 Provide OCTA with a Project Final Report within six months following completion of a Comprehensive 

Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) project

 Timely Use of Funds limit for M2 Net Revenues 

 Participate in Traffic Forums to facilitate the planning of traffic synchronization programs/projects

 Consider land use and planning strategies that accommodate transit and non-motorized transportation



MEETING SCHEDULE

 Annual Eligibility Review (AER) Subcommittee will review:

1. Congestion Management Program (CMP) – September 2019

2. Pavement Management Plan (PMP) – September 2019

3. Mitigation Fee Program Updates – September 2019

4. Local Signal Synchronization Plan – September 2020

5. Expenditure Report – March 2020



PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN REVIEW
PAUL RODRIGUEZ/HARRY THOMAS



PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN (PMP) 

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENT

 Adopt and update biennially a Pavement 

Management Plan (PMP)

 PMP includes:

 Current status of pavement on roads

 Seven-year maintenance and rehabilitation plan  

 Projected road pavement conditions 

 Alternative strategies and costs necessary to improve 

road pavement conditions

OCTA ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Verify the following:

 All required elements are included in the PMP 

 Adoption of PMP 

 Submittal in a timely manner

 Eligibility for 10% local match reduction under Regional 

Capacity Program Call for Projects 



BACKGROUND

 Orange County (OC)

 Population: 3.2 Million

 Third most populous

 Second most dense

 35 local agencies

 Road Miles: 6,592*

 Statewide Pavement Condition Index (PCI):  65*

 OC PCI:  79*

__________
*2018 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment



PROGRAM OBJECTIVES

 Improve and maintain pavement in “Good” condition (OCTA PCI ≥75)

 Keep “Good” pavements in good condition - Preventive Maintenance 

 Repair those that are deficient - Rehabilitation or Reconstruction 

 Encourage cost-effective treatments

 Designate schedule for maintenance and rehabilitation

 Promote consistent field data collection procedures 



PAVEMENT CONDITION INDEX

Poor                   

41-59

Fair  

60-74

Good                        

75-84

Very Good                            

85 - 100

Very Poor     

0-40



INCENTIVES

 10 percent local match reduction criteria for Regional Capacity Competitive 
Program if:

 Network average PCI is improved by one point,  AND

 There is no reduction in average PCI for Master Plan of Arterial Highways 
(MPAH) or local streets

- OR -

▪ Show average PCI within highest 20 percent countywide (PCI of 75 or 
higher)



INSPECTION FREQUENCY

 MPAH (regional roads) – every two years

 Local streets – every six years



QA/QC MODEL

 Model Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) Plan provided by OCTA

 Describe condition survey protocols

 Data collection type (e.g. windshield or walking)

 Data accuracy required (e.g. re-inspections)

 Schedule for data submittal

 Experience of inspectors

 Safety procedures



2019 CONFORMANCE



CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW
SAM SHARVINI



CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (CMP)

Purpose & Need

 M2 Eligibility Requirement: Comply with the conditions and 

requirements of the Orange County Congestion Management 

Program (CMP)

 Required by State legislation      (CA Gov. Code 65088-65089.10)

 Helps meet Federal reporting requirements                (§ 450.320)

OCTA ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES

 Designated Congestion Management Agency

 Responsible for developing CMP report every two years

 Collect traffic counts to calculate changes in congestion (LOS)

 Establish Modeling & Data Consistency

 Established a protocol for developing deficiency plans for 
intersections that do not meet Level of Service Standards

 Review jurisdictions’ checklists that have been submitted for 
compliance with CMP



CMP HIGHWAY SYSTEM

 State highways and Smart Street Network



CMP

Required Elements

 Traffic Level of Service Standards

 Performance Measures

 Travel Demand

 Land Use Analysis Program

 Capital Improvement Program

Program Monitoring 

 Conformance Checklists

 Local Jurisdictions Submittals

 OCTA Administrative Review

 Biennial Traffic Counts



2019 CONFORMANCE

 All 35 agencies are compliant with CMP 

requirements 

 Deficiency plans were not required

 Note: Caltrans intersections do not require 

deficiency plans



MITIGATION FEE PROGRAM REVIEW
PAUL RODRIGUEZ



MITIGATION FEE PROGRAM (MFP)

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENT

 Assess traffic impacts of new development and 

require new development to pay a fair share of 

necessary transportation improvements attributable 

to the new development

OCTA ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES

 Verify the following:

 Process or program to assign cost or improvement 

responsibility through entitlement 

 Nexus Study 

 Impact Fee Schedule 

 Outlined process methodology



2019 CONFORMANCE



NEXT STEPS

 Return signed checklists at the end of today’s meeting or at the TOC meeting on October 8th

 October 8, 2019 – Taxpayer Oversight Committee

 December 2, 2019 – OCTA Regional Planning and Highways Committee 

 December 9, 2019 – OCTA Board of Directors



   

 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Agenda – September 26, 2019 



  AGENDA 
 Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee - 

                                      Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 

 
 

Committee Members  Orange County Transportation Authority  
Douglas Gillen District 1 550 South Main Street, Room 09 
Pauline Merry District 1 Orange, California 
Tuan Nguyen District 3 Thursday, September 26, 2019 5:30 p.m. 
Douglas Anderson District 5  
Jeffery Kaplan District 5  
   
Staff    
Alice Rogan Director, Marketing and Public Outreach  
Adriann Cardoso  Capital Programming Manager 
Joseph Alcock Section Manager, Local Programs 
Kelsey Imler Transportation Funding Analyst, Associate 
Jared Hill Community Relations Specialist, Public Outreach 
Harry Thomas Project Manager 
Sam Sharvini Transportation Analyst 
Paul Rodriguez Rodriguez Consulting Group, Consultant 

Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in 
this meeting should contact the Measure M2 Local Programs section, telephone (714) 560-5397, no 
less than two (2) business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable 
arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting.  

Agenda descriptions are intended to give members of the public a general summary of items of 
business to be transacted or discussed. The posting of the recommended actions does not indicate 
what action will be taken. The Committee may take any action which it deems to be appropriate on 
the agenda item and is not limited in any way by the notice of the recommended action.  

All documents relative to the items referenced in this agenda are available for public inspection at 
www.octa.net or through the Measure M2 Local Programs office at the OCTA Headquarters, 600 
South Main Street, Orange, California. 

Call to Order and Self Introductions  

1. Selection of Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Chair 

2. Approval of May 14, 2019 Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Minutes 

3. Measure M2 Eligibility Overview – Joe Alcock 

4. Pavement Management Plan Review – Harry Thomas  

Overview 

All local jurisdictions in Orange County are required to submit and adopt a Pavement 
Management Plan report biennially in order to remain eligible to receive Measure M2 net 
revenues. The Pavement Management Plan includes current and projected status of pavement 
on roads, plan for road maintenance and rehabilitation, and alternative strategies and costs 
necessary to improve road pavement conditions. There are 14 Pavement Management Plans 
that will be reviewed as part of the fiscal year 2019-20 Measure M2 Eligibility cycle. The 
remaining 21 local agencies were reviewed by the Taxpayer Oversight Committee last year and 
will be due in the next cycle. 

 



  AGENDA 
 Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee - 

                                      Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 

 
 

Recommendation 

Affirm receipt and review of all 14 local agencies’ Pavement Management Plan submittals 
consistent with fiscal year 2019-20 Measure M2 Eligibility submittal requirements.  

5. Congestion Management Program Review – Sam Sharvini  

Overview 
 
All local jurisdictions in Orange County are required to comply with the conditions and 
requirements of the Orange County Congestion Management Program. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Affirm receipt and review of all 35 local agencies’ Congestion Management Program submittals 
consistent with fiscal year 2019-20 Measure M2 Eligibility submittal requirements.  
 

6. Mitigation Fee Program – Paul Rodriguez 
 

Overview 
 
All local jurisdictions in Orange County are required to assess traffic impacts of new development 
and require new development to pay a fair share of necessary transportation 
improvements attributable to the new development. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Affirm receipt and review of all 35 local agencies’ mitigation fee program submittals consistent 
with fiscal year 2019-20 Measure M2 Eligibility submittal requirements. 

7. Eligibility Review Next Steps – Joe Alcock 

• Committee members must sign and return review forms to OCTA at the end of this meeting 
OR bring completed forms to the TOC meeting on Tuesday, October 8, 2019. OCTA staff will 
prepare a staff report that includes subcommittee recommendations to the TOC on Tuesday, 
October 8, 2019. 

• Tuesday, October 8, 2019 

Eligibility submittals review findings will be presented at the TOC meeting on Tuesday, 
October 8, 2019. 

• Monday, December 2, 2019 and December 9, 2019 

The eligibility findings are scheduled to be presented to the OCTA Regional Planning & 
Highways (RP&H) Committee on Monday, December 2, 2019 and Board of Directors on 
December 9, 2019 for a conditional Fiscal Year 2019-20 eligibility determination.  

8. Staff Comments  
 

9. Public Comments 
 

10. Adjournment 
 



  AGENDA 
 Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee - 

                                      Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 

 
 

The next meeting of this subcommittee is anticipated to be held in March 2020 and will be 
scheduled at a later date.  



   

BINDER 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 
 

 

 

 

 

AER Subcommittee Meeting Minutes 

May 14, 2019 

 



  MINUTES 
  Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee –  

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 
May 14, 2019 

 

 May 14, 2019   AER Subcommittee Minutes 
    

 

Voting Members Present: Staff Present: 

Matt McGuinness, Chair District 5 Alice Rogan 

Jeffrey Kaplan District 5 Joseph Alcock 

Eugene Fields District 3 Sean Murdock 

Dale Soeffner District 1 Tami Warren  

Richie Kerwin Lim District 1 Jared Hill 

  Kelsey Imler 

  James Donich 

Call to Order and Self Introductions 
The May 14, 2019 meeting of the Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee was called to order by the Chair, 
Matt McGuinness, at 5:30 p.m. at the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Headquarters, 
550 South Main Street in Conference Room 09. 
 
Consent Calendar Items 
 

1. Approval of September 20, 2018 AER Subcommittee Minutes  

A motion was made by Richie Lim, seconded by Dale Soeffner, and declared passed by those present, 
to approve the Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee meeting minutes of the September 20, 2018 
meeting.  

 
Discussion Items 
 
There were no discussion items.  
 
Regular Items 
 

2. Action Items – Sean Murdock  
 
Mr. Murdock provided an overview of the Measure M (M2) Expenditure Report requirement. He 
explained that all jurisdictions are required to submit an annual Expenditure Report within 6 months 
of the end of their fiscal year in order to remain eligible for M2 funds. He stated that Expenditure 
Reports account for net revenues, developer/traffic impact fees, and funds expended that satisfy 
Maintenance of Effort (MOE) requirements by maintaining a minimum level of local streets and roads 
expenditures. He noted that the reports also include fund balances, interest accrued, and identification 
of expenditures by program.  He explained that Finance Directors are required to sign the Expenditure 
Reports attesting to their accuracy. He also stated that each local agency must also take their 
Expenditure Report to their City Council/Board for adoption.  

 
Mr. Murdock also provided an overview of the OCTA audit process. He explained that eight to twelve 
local agencies are chosen each year to be audited on the expense side of their Expenditure Reports. 
He also mentioned that local agencies cycle through the audit process roughly every three to five 
years.  
 
Mr. McGuiness asked if agencies know when they are going to be audited. 
 
Mr. Murdock replied that local agencies typically find out in August at the M2 Finance Director 
Workshop. However, by then, the fiscal year is done and most books have been closed.  
 



  MINUTES 
  Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee –  

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 
May 14, 2019 

 

 May 14, 2019   AER Subcommittee Minutes 
    

 

Mr. Murdock stated that OCTA staff offers to look at local agencies’ Expenditure Reports prior to their 
going to City Council/Board for adoption in order to catch any mistakes or discrepancies. He also 
stated that OCTA staff make themselves available to answer any questions and help as much as 
possible throughout the process.  
 
Mr. Murdock explained that based on fiscal year 2017-18 audit findings, the cities of Stanton and 
Santa Ana were found ineligible to receive net M2 funds by the OCTA Board of Directors (Board) on 
Monday, May 13, 2019. He also stated that this is the first time that an agency has been found 
ineligible. Mr. Murdock stated that the agencies were found ineligible because they did not meet the 
MOE requirement. He also explained that the M2 MOE requirement states that local agencies must 
annually maintain a minimum level of local streets and roads expenditures (i.e. their MOE benchmark) 
in order to ensure that M2 funds are being used to supplement, not replace, existing local revenues 
being used for transportation improvements and programs. 
 
Mr. Murdock went over the City of Stanton’s Expenditure Report and finding of ineligibility. He 
explained that Stanton’s MOE benchmark was $245,213 and they reported $246,244 in MOE 
expenditures. Therefore, they exceeded their MOE benchmark. However, external auditors found 
approximately $8,600 in MOE expenditures that were not transportation related such as bee removal, 
coyote trappings, public parking materials, and cleanup costs of vacant lots which the City explained 
they had miscoded. After subtracting these ineligible expenses, Stanton’s MOE expenditures fell 
below the MOE benchmark and the OCTA Board found them to be ineligible to receive net M2 funds.  
 
Mr. Murdock further mentioned that the City will not receive any M2 dollars until they are found eligible 
again by the OCTA Board. He also stated that they will not lose M2 funds, and stated that M2 payments 
were suspended until the City can regain eligibility. He also indicated that in order for Stanton to 
become eligible again, the City must finish the fiscal year, complete their Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report, and prepare an annual Expenditure Report. In addition, the City must make up for 
the shortfall of MOE expenditures in FY 2017-18. He stated that external auditors will review Stanton’s 
Expenditure Report submittal in order to ensure the MOE benchmark has been met. If the MOE 
benchmark is satisfied, then the OCTA Board can vote to move the City back into an eligible status 
category and they can start receiving the M2 funds that were suspended.   

 
Mr. Lim asked what will happen to projects that are in the Regional Capacity Program. Mr. Murdock 
explained that the City will need to fund those ongoing projects until they are eligible to receive M2 
funds again.  
 
Mr. McGuinness asked what penalty the Board would have recommended had the City missed their 
MOE benchmark by a larger amount or if the misstatement was willful. 

 
Mr. Donich explained that under the Measure M2 Ordinance, there are two types of penalties. If a local 
agency misspends Measure M2 funds, those funds must be fully repaid, and the local agency will be 
ineligible to receive M2 funds for a period of five years. He also indicated that the M2 Eligibility 
Guidelines state that failure to adhere to eligibility compliance components may result in suspension 
of funds until satisfactory compliance is achieved. Suspension was the penalty that the Board went 
with in the case of Stanton and Santa Ana.  
 
Mr. McGuinness asked who will be paying for the re-audit of Stanton and Santa Ana.  
 
 



  MINUTES 
  Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee –  

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 
May 14, 2019 

 

 May 14, 2019   AER Subcommittee Minutes 
    

 

Mr. Donich replied that as part of the Board action that found these cities ineligible, it was determined 
that the cost of the audits to get the cities back to an eligible status would be charged to the cities. 
 
Mr. Lim asked if Stanton was given the opportunity to look for other expenditures that could qualify 
toward the MOE requirement. He recalled Villa Park falling below their MOE benchmark a few years 
ago and being given this opportunity.  
 
Mr. Murdock replied that reopening the books would not have been an option.  
 
Mr. Donich further explained that OCTA uses the State Gas Tax Guidelines as a model for performing 
audits, and these guidelines state that agencies are not allowed to reopen their books to make 
changes. Mr. Donich noted that this is why it is so important that local agencies not only meet but 
exceed their MOE benchmarks in order to create a buffer in case MOE expenditures are found 
ineligible.  
 
Ms. Warren suggested that the Villa Park instance Mr. Lim was recalling might have been a 
clarification of the books rather than a reopening.  

 
Mr. Soeffner asked if the M2 funds that are being suspended from Stanton and Santa Ana will be 
given to them in one lump sum when they are found to be eligible again.  
 
Mr. Murdock replied that Local Fair Share and Senior Mobility Fund dollars would likely be given as a 
lump sum because they are formula based. However, he noted that this would not likely be the case 
for competitive funds.  
 
Mr. Alcock explained that the cities can submit invoices for competitive funds to OCTA. However, he 
furthered that they will not be paid. Once the cities become eligible again, OCTA would pay approved 
invoices. 
 
Mr. Fields asked how much communication there will be between OCTA and the two ineligible cities. 
 
Mr. Donich replied that there is as much communication as is needed for OCTA to help Stanton and 
Santa Ana. There is no ban or limit on communication.  
 
Mr. Fields asked if there is any advice or mechanism that OCTA can give to these cities in order to 
help them become eligible again and avoid further errors in the future. 
 
Mr. Murdock explained that an agreement will be set up with both cities to make it clear how to become 
eligible again. He noted that OCTA staff are in contact with the local agencies multiple times 
throughout the year to discuss eligibility, and are always available to help with Expenditure Reports 
and questions.  
 
Mr. Donich explained that meeting the MOE requirement is not an unattainable hurdle—every local 
agency has met it and withstood audit for the past 27 years. There has been a lot of communication 
between OCTA and Stanton and Santa Ana as they work through these issues. Both agencies 
understand where things went wrong and have noted that they will exceed their respective MOE 
benchmarks in future years. 
 
 



  MINUTES 
  Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee –  

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 
May 14, 2019 

 

 May 14, 2019   AER Subcommittee Minutes 
    

 

Mr. Murdock added that OCTA is not trying to penalize, rather the goal is to follow the M2 Ordinance 
to ensure that it is administered properly. He noted that Stanton has a balance of approximately 
$675,000 of Local Fair Share funds, which is over a year’s worth of these type of funds, and these 
funds can be used to bridge the gap while the City works to become eligible again.  
 
Mr. Lim asked if the penalty for ineligibility is enforced immediately.  
 
Mr. Murdock stated that Stanton and Santa Ana were found ineligible at the Board meeting on the 
morning of Monday, May 13, 2019, and from that point on, these cities were no longer allowed to 
receive net M2 funds.   
 
Mr. Donich further explained that the eligibility cycle is completed on a yearly basis, and noted, 
however, that ineligibility can be determined at any time of the year by the Board. He said that it is the 
Board who approves the cities to become eligible again.   
 
Mr. Murdock went over the City of Santa Ana’s Expenditure Report and finding of ineligibility. He 
explained that the City had a $7.8 million MOE benchmark and reported $8.2 million in MOE 
expenditures. However, external auditors found a little over $700,000 in indirect costs that were not 
supported by any documentation or cost allocation methodology. Those expenditures were deemed 
ineligible and once subtracted from the City’s expenditures, this put Santa Ana below their MOE 
benchmark. In order for indirect costs to be considered eligible MOE expenditures, they must have a 
valid supporting cost allocation methodology which needs to be no more than three to five years old. 
Santa Ana could not find any recent supporting documentation to explain their methodology, as such 
these costs were disallowed.  
 
Mr. McGuinness asked when Santa Ana was last audited. 
 
Ms. Rogan indicated that their last audit was conducted in 2014.  
 
Mr. Lim asked if they passed the 2014 audit.  
 
Mr. Murdock replied that if any ineligible expenditures were found, they were not large enough to drop 
the City below their MOE benchmark. 
 
Mr. Donich stated that in 2014, Santa Ana’s methodology would have been on the border of being 
outdated and it would have been noted.  
 
Ms. Rogan stated that if there were any specific questions the Subcommittee had regarding the audit 
findings, they could be brought up at the upcoming Audit Subcommittee meeting.  
 
Mr. Murdock explained that Santa Ana was found ineligible at the Monday, May 13, 2019 Board 
meeting and now must follow the same process as Stanton to regain eligibility. 
 
Mr. Fields asked how much this hold up in funding would affect the cities. 
 
Mr. Donich said that both cities have indicated that they can cash flow their projects and do not believe 
it will cause an issue. Santa Ana’s biggest concern was that the money would be lost completely, but 
that is not the case.  
 



  MINUTES 
  Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee –  

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 
May 14, 2019 

 

 May 14, 2019   AER Subcommittee Minutes 
    

 

Mr. Fields expressed concern regarding how the suspension of funds would affect ancillary work being 
done on the OC Streetcar project.  
 
Mr. Murdock stated that OCTA is the lead on the OC Streetcar project, and Mr. Donich further 
explained that the vast majority of the work on the OC Streetcar are project costs which OCTA is 
paying for with M2 funds. However, for portions of the project that are locally funded, Santa Ana will 
have to cash flow those expenses until the issue is resolved. 
 
Mr. Murdock added that Santa Ana gets approximately $5 million a year in Local Fair Share funds and 
they currently have an almost $10 million balance, so they should have enough money to cash flow 
expenses until they become eligible again.  

 
Mr. Murdock stated that OCTA’s Board took these findings of ineligibility very seriously and wanted to 
ensure that the M2 program continues to be administered properly.  
 
Mr. Donich agreed and shared that an overriding statement he heard from most OCTA Board 
members was that they recognize the role and importance of the Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
(TOC) and see that the main reason Measure M was passed twice by two-thirds of the electorate is 
because of the assurances that tax dollars would not be misused.  
 
Mr. Lim asked if cities can be found ineligible even if they have enough expenditures for their MOE, 
but just do not list them on their report.   
 
Mr. Donich replied in the affirmative and noted they could still be found ineligible because of a mistake 
on their part.  
 
Mr. Murdock added that each year OCTA advises cities to report as much MOE as possible on their 
Expenditure Reports, because if something happens and an auditor finds an error on the report which 
drops a city below their MOE benchmark, OCTA’s hands are tied.  
 
Mr. Donich also added that OCTA always allows cities to call and ask questions regarding eligibility 
prior to submitting Expenditure Reports.  
 
Ms. Warren explained that if Stanton and Santa Ana had been given a pass on their errors and failure 
to meet the MOE requirement, it might have led other agencies to not taking OCTA and M2 Eligibility 
requirements seriously.  
 
Mr. Donich explained that the Board authorized the CEO and himself to negotiate and execute a 
settlement agreement with both cities, and noted that they anticipated to outline in the settlement 
agreements what would happen if the cities did not successfully complete the process to become 
eligible again.  

 
Mr. Murdock transitioned to speak about the Expenditure Reports and audit findings for the remaining 
33 local agencies. He reviewed the City of Aliso Viejo’s Expenditure Report in detail as an example to 
familiarize the Subcommittee with the required materials and reports. He noted that negative 
beginning balances indicate that a local agency advanced a project and spent their own money prior 
to receiving M2 funds.  

 
Mr. Lim asked why agencies are required to submit monthly reports for SMP.  
 



  MINUTES 
  Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee –  

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 
May 14, 2019 

 

 May 14, 2019   AER Subcommittee Minutes 
    

 

Mr. Murdock explained that OCTA wants to ensure that the M2 funds are being spent properly and all 
program requirements are being met.  
 
Mr. Lim asked how often agencies have to bid out for contracts.  
 
Mr. Murdock stated that it is up to the local agency. 
 
Mr. Lim asked why there was a finding regarding procurement for the City of Dana Point’s SMP. 
 
Mr. Murdock explained that the City did not have competitive bidding documentation and they were 
missing certain required language in their contract. He also stated that the City does plan to amend 
their current agreement to include the missing language.  

 
Mr. Lim asked if Huntington Beach had a different fiscal year than the rest of the agencies. 
 
Mr. Murdock explained that Huntington Beach changed their fiscal year this year, and their current 
Expenditure Report covers nine months instead of twelve. He stated that next year’s Expenditure 
Report will cover a full year.   
 
Mr. Lim asked why the City of La Habra was given the opportunity to revise their Expenditure Report 
when the cities of Stanton and Santa Ana were not.  
 
Mr. Murdock clarified that the City was revising their Expenditure Report—they are not reopening or 
modifying their books. This revision was necessary because the original report used budgeted 
numbers for MOE and expenditures on the LFS side instead of actuals, making it difficult to tie 
balances. 

 
Mr. Lim asked how indirect costs are defined.  
 
Mr. Murdock stated that it is overhead—any non-directly charged costs. He noted, however, that there 
must be a methodology explaining overhead cost allocations.   

 
Mr. Lim asked if San Juan Capistrano resolved their cost allocation issues from the last audit.  
 
Mr. Murdock explained that last year they had $100,000 of indirect costs and they did not have a cost 
allocation method. Their remedy was to not include these expenses in the future since they did not 
need them to meet their MOE requirement.  
 
Mr. Fields asked how often the Expenditure Reporting Matrix is updated.  
 
Mr. Murdock explained that over the years the Expenditure Report has evolved and become more 
detailed and technical, and mentioned that changes have been made about three times since 2011.   
 
Mr. Fields asked if a margin of error is expected in Expenditure Reports.  
 
Mr. Murdock replied in the affirmative and mentioned that mistakes are often seen.  
 
A motion was made by Jeffrey Kaplan, and seconded by Richie Lim, and declared passed by those 
present, to approve a recommendation to the Audit Subcommittee to re-audit the LFS and SMP 
programs for the cities of San Clemente, Dana Point, and La Habra.  



  MINUTES 
  Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee –  

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 
May 14, 2019 

 

 May 14, 2019   AER Subcommittee Minutes 
    

 

 
A motion was also made by Eugene Fields, and seconded by Matt McGuinness, and declared passed 
by those present, to approve sending a letter to the City of Rancho Santa Margarita congratulating 
them on going above their MOE benchmark and referencing the two cities who missed their 
benchmark as a reason why the City was continuously sent letters encouraging them to report above 
their minimum MOE benchmark. 

 
3. Eligibility Review Next Steps – Joseph Alcock 

 
Mr. Alcock asked the members to complete their review forms and to return signed forms to OCTA at 
the end of the current meeting or on June 11, 2019 at the TOC meeting. Mr. Alcock also informed the 
Subcommittee that the Chair, if available, will present the findings and recommendations from this 
Subcommittee to the broader TOC. Mr. Alcock stated that the Expenditure Report eligibility findings 
are scheduled to be presented to the OCTA Regional Planning & Highways Committee on July 1, 
2019 and Board of Directors on July 8, 2019 for a conditional Fiscal Year 2018-19 eligibility 
determination. 
 

4. Public Comments 
 
There were no members of the public present.  

 
5. Adjournment 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 



   

BINDER 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2019-20 Pavement Management Plan 

Review Summary 



 2019 Measure M2 Eligibility 

Summary Table of Pavement Management Plan (PMP) Elements

Local Agency

Current 

Network 

PCI

Current 

MPAH 

PCI

Current 

Local 

PCI 

Projected 

Network 

PCI 

Projected 

MPAH 

PCI

Projected 

Local 

PCI

7 Year 

R&R 

Plan 

Limits

7 Year 

R&R 

Plan 

Areas

7 Year 

R&R 

Plan 

Class

7 Year 

R&R 

Plan 

PCI

7 Year 

R&R Plan 

Inspection 

Dates

7 Year 

R&R Plan 

Treatment 

Type

7 Year 

R&R Plan 

Treatment 

Cost

7 Year 

R&R Plan 

Treatment 

Year

QA/QC

 7 Years 

Current 

Budget

$ x 10
6

 7 Years 

Maintain 

Network 

PCI

$ x 10
6

 7 Years 

Improve

Network 

PCI

$ x 10
6

Software
Certification 

Form

Compliant 

PMP 

(Y/N)

Anaheim F F F F F P ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ SS ✓ Y

Brea G G G G G G ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Micro ✓ Y

County of Orange G G G G G G ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ SS ✓ Y

Cypress VG G VG G G G ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ SS ✓ Y

Dana Point VG VG G VG VG VG ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ SS ✓ Y

Irvine VG VG VG VG VG VG ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Micro ✓ Y

La Habra G G G G G G ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Micro ✓ Y

Lake Forest G G G G G G ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ SS ✓ Y

Los Alamitos F F F P P F ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Micro ✓ Y

Newport Beach G G G G G G ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Micro ✓ Y

San Clemente VG VG VG VG VG G ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Micro ✓ Y

San Juan Capistrano F F F F F F ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ SS ✓ Y

Stanton G G G G G F ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Micro ✓ Y

Tustin VG VG VG G G G ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ Micro ✓ Y

Pavement Quality Abbreviation PCI

Very Good VG 85-100

Good G 75-84

Fair F 60-74

Poor P 41-59

Very Poor VP 0-40

Micro

MPAH

PCI

QA/QC

R&R

SS

*

I certify that the information contained in this table is an accurate representation of materials submitted to OCTA for purposes of meeting requirements related to the Pavement Management Plan.

Harry W. Thomas, OCTA

Road Maintenance & Rehabilitation Plan

StreetSaver Pavement Management Program

All Laguna Woods local streets are private

Legend

Acronyms

MicroPaver Pavement Management Program

Master Plan of Arterial Highways

Pavement Condition Index

Quality Assurance/Quality Control Plan



   

BINDER 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2019-20 Pavement Management Plan 

Certifications 























City of San Clemente, CA 

2019 Pavement Management Program 

Final Report- May 15, 2019 

I. Pavement Management Plan Certification 

Page2 

Section V 

The City of San Clemente, CA certifies that it has a Pavement Management Plan in conformance with the 

criteria stated in the Orange County Transportation Authority Ordinance No. 3. This ordinance requires 

that a Pavement Management Plan be in place and maintained to qualify for allocation of revenues 

generated from renewed Measure M (M2). 

The plan was developed by Bucknam Infrastructure Group, Inc. using MicroPAVER, a pavement 

management system conforming to American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) Standard D6433, 

and contains, at a minimum, the following elements: 

• Inventory of MPAH and Local routes reviewed and updated biennially. The last update of the 

inventory was completed on April, 2019 for the Arterial (MPAH) and April 2019 for the Local 

streets; 
• Assessment of the pavement condition for all routes in the system, updated biennially. The last 

field review of the pavement condition was completed in April, 2019; 
• Percentage of all section of pavement needing: 

o Preventive Maintenance= 25.8%; 

o Rehabilitation= 7.9%; 

o Reconstruction = 0.4% 
• Budget needs for preventive maintenance, rehabilitation and/or reconstruction of deficient 

sections of pavement for: 

o Current biennial period $6,172,500 

o following biennial period $6,695,000 
• Funds budgeted or available for Preventive Maintenance, Rehabilitation and/or Reconstruction. 

o Current biennial period $6,172,500; 

o following biennial period $6,695,000 
• Backlog by year of unfunded rehabilitation, restoration and reconstruction needs (See page 10); 
• The Pavement Management Plan is consistent with countywide pavement condition assessment 

standards as described in the OCTA Countywide Pavement Management Plan Guidelines adopted 

by the OCTA Board of Directors. 

*An electronic copy of the Pavement Management Plan (with MicroPAVER or StreetSaver compatible 

files) has been or will be submitted with the certification statement. A copy of this certification is being 

provided to the Orange County Transportation Authority. 

Submitted by: 

JOt« 8'otVt6u( 
Name(Pri� 
Signed 

Public Works Director I City Engineer 

Title 

City of San Clemente 

Jurisdiction 

Date 



pmeshkin
Line

pmeshkin
Line







   

BINDER 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2019-20 Congestion Management Program 

Review Summary 

 





!

!

! !!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

! !

!

!
! ! !

!

!
!

!
! ! !!
!!

!

!! !
! !

!
!

!!!!! !

!
!

!

!! ! ! !

! !
!! !

!! ! !!
!
!

!
!

!!!

!
! !

!
!

!
!
!!

!

!

!
!

! !

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!!

!

!
!

LA

G

U
N

A

CA

N
Y

O
N

G
O

LD
EN

LA

NT

E
R

N

C
R

O
W

N
VA

LLE
YPACIFIC

C
O

AST

IMPERIAL

IRVINE

ORTEGA

M
O

ULTO
N

B
E

A
C

H

PACIFIC
COAST

1ST

WARNER

S
TATE

C
O

LL E
G

E

R
O

S
E

EDINGER

T
U

STIN

M
AC

ART
H

U
R

H
A

R
B

O
R

B
O

LS
A

C
H

IC
A

ADAMS

IRVINE
CENTER

JA
M

BO
REE

V
A

LL
E

Y
V

IE
W

COAST

H
A

R
B

O
R

BOLSA

IMPERIAL

KATELLA

ORANGETHORPE

CARBON CANYON

TRABUCO

N
EW

P
O

RT

EL TO
RO

B
E

A
C

H

A»

?l

%&l(

A¥

A¾

?ê

?k

A»

!"̂$

%&o(

%&l(

A¾

AÊ

!"̂$

!"̂$

Aß

ORANGE

SANTA ANA

FULLERTON

ANAHEIM

LAGUNA
NIGUEL

SEAL
BEACH

TUSTIN

BREA

MISSION
VIEJO

GARDEN
GROVE

NEWPORT
BEACH

SAN CLEMENTE

COSTA
MESA

LAKE
FOREST

LAGUNA
BEACH

WESTMINSTER

BUENA
PARK

VILLA
PARK

PLACENTIA

CYPRESS

LOS
ALAMITOS

STANTON

LA
PALMA

RANCHO
SANTA

MARGARITA

ALISO
VIEJO

HUNTINGTON
BEACH

YORBA LINDA

LAGUNA
WOODS

LAGUNA
HILLS

DANA
POINT

LA HABRA

FOUNTAIN
VALLEY

SAN JUAN
CAPISTRANO

IRVINE

Source: OCTA

7/24/2019

W
:\

R
e

q
u

e
s
ts

\P
D

C
S

\S
P

\P
A

\F
re

e
w

a
y
s\

L
O

S
\m

xd
\C

M
P

1
9

_
S

Y
S

_
2

0
1

9
-0

7
2

4
.m

xd

0 52.5

MilesZ

Figure 2: 2019 Congestion Management Program Highway System

!

Freeways

CMP Highway System

CMP Intersection



   

BINDER 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2019-20 Congestion Management Program 

Checklists 

 













 













 













 













 













 













 













 













 













 













 













 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 

Jurisdiction: City of Irvine 
 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Level of Service (LOS) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:    

 There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

 Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities1, all CMP intersections within your 
jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline level, if worse than E) or 
better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO  

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2.  If any, please list those intersections that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.  

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

3.  Will deficient intersections, if any, be improved by mitigation measures to be 
implemented in the next 18 months or improvements programmed in the first year of 
any recent funding program (i.e. local jurisdiction CIP, Measure M CIP)? 

   

a. If not, has a deficiency plan been developed for each intersection that will be 
operating below the CMP LOS standards? 

   

Additional Comments: 

 

 

_________ 

1The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:    

 There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

 Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities2, all CMP Highway System (CMPHS) 
intersections within your jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline 
level, if worse than E) or better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO 

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2. If any, please list those intersections found that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.  

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

3. Are there improvements to bring these intersections to the CMP LOS standard scheduled 
for completion during the next 18 months or programmed in the first year of the CIP? 

   

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 3 NEED TO 

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS.

4. Has a deficiency plan or a schedule for preparing a deficiency plan been submitted to 
OCTA? 

   

5.  Does the deficiency plan fulfill the following statutory requirements? : 

a. Include an analysis of the causes of the deficiency?    

b. Include a list of improvements necessary to maintain minimum LOS 
standards on the CMPHS and the estimated costs of the improvements? 

   

c. Include a list of improvements, programs, or actions, and estimates of their 
costs, which will improve LOS on the CMPHS and improve air quality? 

   

i. Do the improvements, programs, or actions meet the criteria established 
by South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) (see the CMP 
Preparation Manual)? 

   

___________ 
2The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans (cont.) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

6. Are the capital improvements identified in the deficiency plan programmed in your 
seven-year CIP? 

   

7. Does the deficiency plan include a monitoring program that will ensure its 
implementation? 

   

8. Does the deficiency plan include a process to allow some level of development to 
proceed pending correction of the deficiency? 

   

9. Has necessary inter-jurisdictional coordination occurred?    

10. 

 

Please describe any innovative programs, if any, included in the deficiency plan:  


 
 

 

 




 

Additional Comments:







 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Land Use Coordination 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Have you maintained the CMP traffic impact analysis (TIA) process you selected for the 
previous CMP? 

   

a. If not, have you submitted the revised TIA approach and methodology to OCTA 
for review and approval? 

   

2.  Did any development projects require a CMP TIA during this CMP cycle?3    

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "YES" FOR QUESTION 2 NEED TO  

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

3. If so, how many? ___________ 

4. Please list any CMPHS links & intersections that were projected to not meet the CMP LOS standards (indicate 
whether any are outside of your jurisdiction). 



 






 

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

a. Were mitigation measures and costs identified for each and included in your 
seven-year CIP? 

   

b. If any impacted links & intersections were outside your jurisdiction, did your 
agency coordinate with other jurisdictions to develop a mitigation strategy? 

   

5. If a local traffic model was/will be used, did you follow the data and modeling 
consistency requirements as described in the CMP Preparation Manual (available online 
at http://www.octa.net/pdf/cmpprepmanual.pdf)? 

   

Additional Comments: 



 

 

___ 
 
3Exemptions include: any development generating less than 2,400 daily trips, any development generating less than 1,600 daily trips (if it 
directly accesses a CMP highway), final tract and parcel maps, issuance of building permits, issuance of certificate of use and occupancy, and 
minor modifications to approved developments where the location and intensity of project uses have been approved through previous and 
separate local government actions prior to January 1, 1992. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Did you submit a seven-year CIP to OCTA by June 30?    

2. Does the CIP include projects to maintain or improve the performance of the CMPHS 
(including capacity expansion, safety, maintenance, and rehabilitation)? 

   

3. Is it consistent with air quality mitigation measures for transportation- related vehicle 
emissions? 

   

4. Was the Web Smart CIP provided by the OCTA used to prepare the CIP?    

Additional Comments: 
















 



I certify that the information contained in this checklist is true. 

 
Wendy Wang  Assoc. Trans. Analyst    6/27/2019 

Name (Print)  Title  Signature  Date 

       
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 













 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 
Jurisdiction: City of La Palma 

 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Level of Service (LOS) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply: o o  

• There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

• Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities1, all CMP intersections within your 
jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline level, if worse than E) or 
better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO  
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2.  If any, please list those intersections that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards. o 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

3.  Will deficient intersections, if any, be improved by mitigation measures to be 
implemented in the next 18 months or improvements programmed in the first year of 
any recent funding program (i.e. local jurisdiction CIP, Measure M CIP)? 

o o o 

a. If not, has a deficiency plan been developed for each intersection that will be 
operating below the CMP LOS standards? 

o o o 

Additional Comments: 

 

 

_________ 

1The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply: o o  

• There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

• Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities2, all CMP Highway System (CMPHS) 
intersections within your jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline 
level, if worse than E) or better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO 
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2. If any, please list those intersections found that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards. o 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

3. Are there improvements to bring these intersections to the CMP LOS standard scheduled 
for completion during the next 18 months or programmed in the first year of the CIP? 

o o o 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 3 NEED TO 
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

4. Has a deficiency plan or a schedule for preparing a deficiency plan been submitted to 
OCTA? 

o o o 

5.  Does the deficiency plan fulfill the following statutory requirements? : 

a. Include an analysis of the causes of the deficiency? o o o 

b. Include a list of improvements necessary to maintain minimum LOS 
standards on the CMPHS and the estimated costs of the improvements? 

o o o 

c. Include a list of improvements, programs, or actions, and estimates of their 
costs, which will improve LOS on the CMPHS and improve air quality? 

o o o 

i. Do the improvements, programs, or actions meet the criteria established 
by South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) (see the CMP 
Preparation Manual)? 

o o o 

___________ 
2The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans (cont.) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

6. Are the capital improvements identified in the deficiency plan programmed in your 
seven-year CIP? 

o o o 

7. Does the deficiency plan include a monitoring program that will ensure its 
implementation? 

o o o 

8. Does the deficiency plan include a process to allow some level of development to 
proceed pending correction of the deficiency? 

o o o 

9. Has necessary inter-jurisdictional coordination occurred? o o o 

10. 
 

Please describe any innovative programs, if any, included in the deficiency plan: o 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Additional Comments: 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Land Use Coordination 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Have you maintained the CMP traffic impact analysis (TIA) process you selected for the 
previous CMP? 

o o  

a. If not, have you submitted the revised TIA approach and methodology to OCTA 
for review and approval? 

o o o 

2.  Did any development projects require a CMP TIA during this CMP cycle?3 o o  

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "YES" FOR QUESTION 2 NEED TO  
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

3. If so, how many? ___________ 

4. Please list any CMPHS links & intersections that were projected to not meet the CMP LOS standards (indicate 
whether any are outside of your jurisdiction). 

 

o 
 

 

 

 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

a. Were mitigation measures and costs identified for each and included in your 
seven-year CIP? 

o o o 

b. If any impacted links & intersections were outside your jurisdiction, did your 
agency coordinate with other jurisdictions to develop a mitigation strategy? 

o o o 

5. If a local traffic model was/will be used, did you follow the data and modeling 
consistency requirements as described in the CMP Preparation Manual (available online 
at http://www.octa.net/pdf/cmpprepmanual.pdf)? 

o o o 

Additional Comments: 
 

 
 

___ 
 
3Exemptions include: any development generating less than 2,400 daily trips, any development generating less than 1,600 daily trips (if it 
directly accesses a CMP highway), final tract and parcel maps, issuance of building permits, issuance of certificate of use and occupancy, and 
minor modifications to approved developments where the location and intensity of project uses have been approved through previous and 
separate local government actions prior to January 1, 1992. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 





 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 

Jurisdiction: City of Laguna Beach 
 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Level of Service (LOS) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:    

• There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

• Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities1, all CMP intersections within your 
jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline level, if worse than E) or 
better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO  

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2.  If any, please list those intersections that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.  

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

3.  Will deficient intersections, if any, be improved by mitigation measures to be 
implemented in the next 18 months or improvements programmed in the first year of 
any recent funding program (i.e. local jurisdiction CIP, Measure M CIP)? 

   

a. If not, has a deficiency plan been developed for each intersection that will be 
operating below the CMP LOS standards? 

   

Additional Comments: 

 

 

_________ 

1The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:    

• There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

• Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities2, all CMP Highway System (CMPHS) 
intersections within your jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline 
level, if worse than E) or better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO 

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2. If any, please list those intersections found that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.  

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

3. Are there improvements to bring these intersections to the CMP LOS standard scheduled 
for completion during the next 18 months or programmed in the first year of the CIP? 

   

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 3 NEED TO 

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

4. Has a deficiency plan or a schedule for preparing a deficiency plan been submitted to 
OCTA? 

   

5.  Does the deficiency plan fulfill the following statutory requirements? : 

a. Include an analysis of the causes of the deficiency?    

b. Include a list of improvements necessary to maintain minimum LOS 
standards on the CMPHS and the estimated costs of the improvements? 

   

c. Include a list of improvements, programs, or actions, and estimates of their 
costs, which will improve LOS on the CMPHS and improve air quality? 

   

i. Do the improvements, programs, or actions meet the criteria established 
by South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) (see the CMP 
Preparation Manual)? 

   

___________ 
2The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans (cont.) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

6. Are the capital improvements identified in the deficiency plan programmed in your 
seven-year CIP? 

   

7. Does the deficiency plan include a monitoring program that will ensure its 
implementation? 

   

8. Does the deficiency plan include a process to allow some level of development to 
proceed pending correction of the deficiency? 

   

9. Has necessary inter-jurisdictional coordination occurred?    

10. 

 

Please describe any innovative programs, if any, included in the deficiency plan:  

  

 

 
 

 

 

Additional Comments: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Land Use Coordination 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Have you maintained the CMP traffic impact analysis (TIA) process you selected for the 
previous CMP? 

   

a. If not, have you submitted the revised TIA approach and methodology to OCTA 
for review and approval? 

   

2.  Did any development projects require a CMP TIA during this CMP cycle?3    

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "YES" FOR QUESTION 2 NEED TO  

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

3. If so, how many? ___________ 

4. Please list any CMPHS links & intersections that were projected to not meet the CMP LOS standards (indicate 
whether any are outside of your jurisdiction). 

 

 

 

 

 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

a. Were mitigation measures and costs identified for each and included in your 
seven-year CIP? 

   

b. If any impacted links & intersections were outside your jurisdiction, did your 
agency coordinate with other jurisdictions to develop a mitigation strategy? 

   

5. If a local traffic model was/will be used, did you follow the data and modeling 
consistency requirements as described in the CMP Preparation Manual (available online 
at http://www.octa.net/pdf/cmpprepmanual.pdf)? 

   

Additional Comments: 

 

 

 

___ 
 
3Exemptions include: any development generating less than 2,400 daily trips, any development generating less than 1,600 daily trips (if it 
directly accesses a CMP highway), final tract and parcel maps, issuance of building permits, issuance of certificate of use and occupancy, and 
minor modifications to approved developments where the location and intensity of project uses have been approved through previous and 
separate local government actions prior to January 1, 1992. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

http://www.octa.net/pdf/cmpprepmanual.pdf




 













 













 













 













 













 













 













 













 



/N
OCTA

APPENDIX C
Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP Monitoring Checklish Level of Seruice (LOS)

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A

1 Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:

a There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction.

Factoring out statutorily-exempt activitiesl, all CMP intersections within your
jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline level, if worse than E) or
better.

a

I

NOTE: ONIY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO

ANSWER THE REMAINTNG QUESTIONS.

2 If any, please list those intersections that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.

a

a

3 Will deficient intersections, if any, be improved by mitigation measures to be
implemented in the next 18 months or improvements programmed in the first year of
any recent funding program (i.e. localjurisdiction CIP, Measure M CIP)?

If not, has a deficiency plan been developed for each intersection that will be
operating below the CMP LOS standards?

tr

Additional Comments:

Jurisdiction: City of Placentia

lThe following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffìc aenerated by the provision of low
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffìc
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffìc generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a
fìxed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station.



7N('CTA APPENDIX C
Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP Monitoring Checklisü Deficiency Plans

CMP Checklíst YES NO N/A

1 Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:

a There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction.

Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities2, all CMP Highway System (CMPHS)
intersections within your jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline
level, if worse than E) or better.

a

tr

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION I NEED TO

ANSWER THE REMATNTNG QUESTTONS.

2 If any, please list those intersections found that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.

a

a

o

3. Are there improvements to bring these intersections to the CMP LOS standard scheduled
for completion during the next 18 months or programmed in the first year of the CIP?

tr

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 3 NEED TO

ANSWER THE REMATNTNG QUESTIONS.

4 Has a deficiency plan or a schedule for preparing a deficiency plan been submitted to
ocïA?

tr

5. Does the deficiency plan fulfill the following statutory requirements?

a. Include an analysis ofthe causes of the deficiency? tr tr T
b. Include a list of improvements necessary to maintain rninimum LOS

standards on the CMPHS and the estimated costs of the improvements?

c. Include a list of improvements, programs, or actions, and estimates of their
costs, which will improve LOS on the CMPHS and improve air quality?

t
i. Do the improvements, programs/ or actions meet the criteria established

by South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) (see the CMP
Preparation Manual)?

tr

2The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffìc generated by the proúision of low
and very low income housing, construction rehabil¡tation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a

fixed-rail passenger station, traffìc generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station.



/N
OCTA

APPENDIX C
Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP Monitoring Checklish Deficiency Plans (cont.)

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A

6 Are the capital improvements identified in the deficiency plan programmed in your
seven-year CIP?

7 Does the deficiency plan include a monitoring program that will ensure its
implementation?

I Does the deficiency plan include a process to allow some level of development to
proceed pending correction of the deficienry?

9 Has necessa ry i nter-j u risdictional coord ination occu rred?

10. Please describe any innovative programs, if any, included in the deficiency plan

Additíonal Comments:



7N('CTA APPENDIX C
Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP Monitoring Checklisü Land Use Coordination

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A

1 Have you maintained the CMP traffic impact analysis (TIA) process you selected for the
previous CMP?

a. If not, have you submiüed the revised TIA approach and methodology to OCTA

for review and approval?

tr tr

2. Did any development projects require a CMP TIA during this CMP rycle?3 tr

NOTE: ONIY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "YES" FOR QUESTION 2 NEED TO

ANSWER THE REMATNTNG QUESTTONS.

3. If so, how many?

4 Please list any CMPHS links & intersections that were projected to not meet the CMP LOS standards (indicate

whether any are outside of your jurisdiction).

a

a

a

T

a Were mitigation measures and costs identified for each and included in your
seven-year CIP?

n

b. If any impacted links & intersections were outside your jurisdiction, did your
agency coordinate with other jurisdictions to develop a mitigation strategy?

tr

5 If a local traffic model was/will be used, did you follow the data and modeling
consistency requirements as described in the CMP Preparation Manual (available online
at http : //www.octa. net/pdf/cm oorepma nual. pdf)?

Additional Comments

3Exemptions include: any development generating less than 2,400 daily trips, any development generating less than 1,600 daily trips (if it
directly accesses a CMP highway), fìnal tract and parcel maps, issuance of building permits, issuance of cedificate of use and occupancy, and
minor modifications to approved developments where the location and intensity of project uses have been approved through previous and

separate local government actions prior to January I, t992.



7N('CTA APPENDIX C
Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Capital Improvement Program (CIP)

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A

I Did you submit a seven-year CIP to OCTA by June 30? T

2. Does the CIP include projects to maintain or improve the peformance of the CMPHS

(including capacity expansion, safety, maintenance, and rehabilitation)?
T

3. Is it consistent with air quality mitigation measures for transportation- related vehicle

emissions?

4 Was the Web Smart CIP provided by the OCTA used to prepare the CIP? T

Additional Comments:

I certiff that the information contained in this checklist is true.

UaS úfuttøz- Þtú{zrf- Tr,rlulC o
Name (Print) Title Signatu Date



 



m 
OCTA 

APPENDIX C 
Congestion Management Program (CMP) 

Jurisdiction: City of Rancho Santa Margarita 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Level of Service (LOS) 

CMP Checklist YES NP N!A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply: l.lSl tJ 

• There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction . 

• Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities!, all CMP intersections within your 
jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline level, if worse than E) or 
better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO 

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2.. I If any, please list those intersections that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards. tJ 

• 

• 

• 
3. Will deficient intersections, if any, be improved by mitigation measures to be D D 0 

implemented in the next 18 months or improvements programmed in the first year of 
any recent funding program (i.e. local jurisdiction CIP, Measure M CIP)? 

a. If not, has a deficiency plan been developed for each intersection that will 0 1 D 0 
be operating below the CMP LOS standards? 

Additional Comments: 

1The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 



m 
OCTA 

APPENDIX C 
Congestion Management Program (CMP) 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply: lXI 0 

• There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction . 

• Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities2, all CMP Highway System (CMPHS) 
intersections within your jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline 
level, if worse than E) or better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO 

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2. If any, please list those intersections found that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards. [J 

• 
• 

• 
3. Are there improvements to bring these intersections to the CMP LOS standard scheduled 0 D Cl 

for completion during the next 18 months or programmed in the first year of the CIP? 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 3 NEED TO 

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

4. Has a deficiency plan or a schedule for preparing a deficiency plan been submitted to r:.J 0 D 
OCTA? 

5. Does the deficiency plan fulfill the following statutory requirements? : 

a. Include an analysis of the causes of the deficiency? ·D D D 

b. Include a list of improvements necessary to maintain minimum LOS 0 0 0 
standards on the CMPHS and the estimated costs of the improvements? 

c. Include a list of improvements, programs, or actions, and estimates of their 0 0 D 
costs, which will improve LOS on the CMPHS and improve air quality? 

i. Do the improvements, programs, or actions meet the criteria established [J. 0 D 
by South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) (see the CMP 
Preparation Manual)? 

2The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signa' coordination by the stnte or multi-jurisdictiana\ agencies, traffic generated by hrgh-density residential development within 1/4 miJe. of 11 

fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 



OCTA 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans (cont.) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

6. Are the capital improvements identified in the deficiency plan programmed in your CJ 0 0 
seven-year CIP? 

7. Does the deficiency plan include a monitoring program that will ensure its D 0 0 
implementation? 

' 

8. Does the deficiency plan include a process to allow some level of development to D D 0 
proceed pending correction of the deficiency? 

9. Has necessary inter-jurisdictional coordination occurred? 0 Cl D 

10. Please describe any innovative programs, if any, included in the deficiency plan: 0 

-

Additional Comments: 

I 



m 
OCTA 

APPENDIX C 
Congestion Management Program (CMP) 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Land Use Coordination 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/.A 
' 

1. Have you maintained the CMP traffic impact analysis (TIA) process you selected for the 0 IJ 
previous CMP? 

a. If not, have you submitted the revised TIA approach and methodology to OCTA CJ 0 [8] 

for review and approval? 

2. 1 Did any development projects require a CMP TIA during this CMP cycle?3 [J 00 

NOTE: ONlY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "YES" FOR QUESTION 2 NEED TO 

ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

3. If so, how many? 

4. Please list any CMPHS links & intersections that were projected to not meet the CMP LOS standards (indicate 
whether any are outside of your jurisdiction). D 

·li 

• 
.. , 
a . Were mitigation measures and costs identified for each and included in your D [] [J 

seven-year CIP? 

b. If any impacted links & intersections were outside your jurisdiction, did your 0 D D 
agency coordinate with other jurisdictions to develop a mitigation strategy? 

.5 , If a local traffic model was/will be used, did you follow the data and modeling D 0 D 
consistency requirements as described in the CMP Preparation Manual (available online 
at bttR:LLwww . Qcta.ns:tLgdfLcmggr~gmanuSJ!,(:ldf)? 

Additional Comments: 

3Exemptions include: any development generating less than 2,400 dai ly trips, any developtl'lfnt genera fiQ less than 1,600 da'i ty trtps (if It 
directly .accesses a CMP highw<iV), final' tract 1;1nd p;artel maps, issu<mc:.e of bullding p rml , iSSuallCe of certiAcate of use aM occupi'lf'cy, and 
minor modifications to approved developments where the loca tion and' intensity of proj ect !J!;e5 nave been approved through previous and 
separate local government actions prior to January 1, 1992. 



m 
OCTA 

APPENDIX C 
Congestion Management Program (CMP) 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Did you submit a seven-year CIP to OCTA by June 30? 181 0 0 
I 

2. Does the CIP include projects to maintain or improve the performance of the CMPHS 1!1 D 0 
(including capacity expansion, safety, maintenance, and rehabilitation)? 

3, Is it consistent with air quality mitigation measures for transportation- related vehicle lEI D D 
emissions? 

4. Was the Web Smart CIP provided by the OCTA used to prepare the CIP? IZl tJ D 

Additional Comments: 

I certify that the information contained in this checklist is true. 

Brendan Dugan, P.E. Director. of Public Works/ ~ City Engineer t-ll-lt1 
Name (Print) Title Date 



 













 













 













 













 













 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 
Jurisdiction: City of Tustin 

 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Level of Service (LOS) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply: o o  

• There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

• Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities1, all CMP intersections within your 
jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline level, if worse than E) or 
better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO  
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2.  If any, please list those intersections that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards. o 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

3.  Will deficient intersections, if any, be improved by mitigation measures to be 
implemented in the next 18 months or improvements programmed in the first year of 
any recent funding program (i.e. local jurisdiction CIP, Measure M CIP)? 

o o o 

a. If not, has a deficiency plan been developed for each intersection that will be 
operating below the CMP LOS standards? 

o o o 

Additional Comments: 

 

 

_________ 

1The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply: o o  

• There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

• Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities2, all CMP Highway System (CMPHS) 
intersections within your jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline 
level, if worse than E) or better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO 
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2. If any, please list those intersections found that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards. o 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

3. Are there improvements to bring these intersections to the CMP LOS standard scheduled 
for completion during the next 18 months or programmed in the first year of the CIP? 

o o o 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 3 NEED TO 
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

4. Has a deficiency plan or a schedule for preparing a deficiency plan been submitted to 
OCTA? 

o o o 

5.  Does the deficiency plan fulfill the following statutory requirements? : 

a. Include an analysis of the causes of the deficiency? o o o 

b. Include a list of improvements necessary to maintain minimum LOS 
standards on the CMPHS and the estimated costs of the improvements? 

o o o 

c. Include a list of improvements, programs, or actions, and estimates of their 
costs, which will improve LOS on the CMPHS and improve air quality? 

o o o 

i. Do the improvements, programs, or actions meet the criteria established 
by South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) (see the CMP 
Preparation Manual)? 

o o o 

___________ 
2The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans (cont.) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

6. Are the capital improvements identified in the deficiency plan programmed in your 
seven-year CIP? 

o o o 

7. Does the deficiency plan include a monitoring program that will ensure its 
implementation? 

o o o 

8. Does the deficiency plan include a process to allow some level of development to 
proceed pending correction of the deficiency? 

o o o 

9. Has necessary inter-jurisdictional coordination occurred? o o o 

10. 
 

Please describe any innovative programs, if any, included in the deficiency plan: o 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Additional Comments: 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Land Use Coordination 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Have you maintained the CMP traffic impact analysis (TIA) process you selected for the 
previous CMP? 

o o  

a. If not, have you submitted the revised TIA approach and methodology to OCTA 
for review and approval? 

o o o 

2.  Did any development projects require a CMP TIA during this CMP cycle?3 o o  

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "YES" FOR QUESTION 2 NEED TO  
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

3. If so, how many? ___________ 

4. Please list any CMPHS links & intersections that were projected to not meet the CMP LOS standards (indicate 
whether any are outside of your jurisdiction). 

 

o 
 

 

 

 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

• _____________________________ 

a. Were mitigation measures and costs identified for each and included in your 
seven-year CIP? 

o o o 

b. If any impacted links & intersections were outside your jurisdiction, did your 
agency coordinate with other jurisdictions to develop a mitigation strategy? 

o o o 

5. If a local traffic model was/will be used, did you follow the data and modeling 
consistency requirements as described in the CMP Preparation Manual (available online 
at http://www.octa.net/pdf/cmpprepmanual.pdf)? 

o o o 

Additional Comments: 
 

 
 

___ 
 
3Exemptions include: any development generating less than 2,400 daily trips, any development generating less than 1,600 daily trips (if it 
directly accesses a CMP highway), final tract and parcel maps, issuance of building permits, issuance of certificate of use and occupancy, and 
minor modifications to approved developments where the location and intensity of project uses have been approved through previous and 
separate local government actions prior to January 1, 1992. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 





 













 













 



7N
OCTA

APPENDIX C
Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Level of Seruice (LOS)

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A

1 Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:

. There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction.

. Factoring out statutorily-exempt activitiesl, all CMP intersections within your
jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline level, if worse than E) or
better.

ú tr

NOTE: ONIY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO

ANSWER THE REMATNTNG QUESTTONS.

2 If any, please list those intersections that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.

a

a

a

3 Will deficient intersections, if any, be improved by mitigation measures to be

implemented in the next 1B months or improvements programmed in the first year of
any recent funding program (i.e. localjurisdiction CIP, Measure M CIP)?

tr

a. If not, has a deficiency plan been developed for each intersection that will be

operating below the CMP LOS standards?

Additional Comments:

Iurisdiction: City of Yorba Linda

lThe following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low

and very low income housing, construct¡on rehabilitation or ma¡ntenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp meter¡ng, traffic

signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a

fixed-rail passenger station, traffic aenerated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger stat¡on.



/N
OGTA

APPENDIX C
Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP, Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A

1 Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:

. There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction,

¡ Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities2, all CMP Highway System (CMPHS)

intersections within your jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline
level, if worse than E) or better.

ú

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO

ANSWER THE REMATNTNG QUESTTONS.

2 If any, please list those intersections found that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.

a

a

a

3 Are there improvements to bring these intersections to the CMP LOS standard scheduled
for completion during the next 18 months or programmed in the first year of the CIP?

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 3 NEED TO

ANSWER THE REMATNING QUESTTONS.

4 Has a deficiency plan or a schedule for preparing a deficiency plan been submitted to
OCTA?

5 Does the deficiency plan fulfill the following statutory requirements?

a. Include an analysis of the causes of the deficiency? tr tr tr

b. Include a list of improvements necessary to maintain minimum LOS

standards on the CMPHS and the estimated costs of the improvements?

c. Include a list of improvements/ programs, or actions, and estimates of their
costs, which will improve LOS on the CMPHS and improve air quality?

i. Do the improvements/ programs/ or actions meet the criteria established
by South Coast Air QualiÇ Management District (SCAQMD) (see the CMP

Preparation Manual)?

2The following activit¡es are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinat¡ons: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a

fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station,



m
OGT]A

APPENDIX C
Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP Chæklist YES NO N/A

6. Are the capital improvements identified in the deficiency plan programmed in your
seven-year CIP?

tr7 Does the deficiency plan include a monitoring program that will ensure its
implementation?

B. Does the deficiency plan include a process to allow some level of development to
proceed pending correction of the deficiency?

tr

9. Has necessary inter-jurisdictional coordination occurred?

10. Please describe any innovative programs, if any, included in the deficiency plan:

Additbnal C¡mments:





/N
OCTA APPENDIX C

Congestion Management Program (CMP)

CMP Cheddist YES NO N/A

1 Did you submit a seven-year CIP to OCTA by June 30? ú

2. Does the CIP include projects to maintain or improve the peformance of the CMPHS
(including ca pacity expansion, safety, ma intena nce, and reha bi litation)?

{

3. Is it consistent with air quality mitigation measures for transpoftation- related vehicle
emissions?

ú

4. Was the Web Smaft CIP provided by the OCTA used to prepare the CIP? d tr

Additional Comments:

I certiff that the information contained in this checklist is true

(., cl,-'lw
Name (Print)



 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 
Jurisdiction: Choose an item. 

 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Level of Service (LOS) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:    

 There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

 Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities1, all CMP intersections within your 
jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline level, if worse than E) or 
better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO  
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2.  If any, please list those intersections that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.  

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

3.  Will deficient intersections, if any, be improved by mitigation measures to be 
implemented in the next 18 months or improvements programmed in the first year of 
any recent funding program (i.e. local jurisdiction CIP, Measure M CIP)? 

   

a. If not, has a deficiency plan been developed for each intersection that will be 
operating below the CMP LOS standards? 

   

Additional Comments: 

 

 

_________ 

1The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

KimC
Accepted

KimC
Text Box
County of Orange



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Check "Yes" if either of the following apply:    

 There are no CMP intersections in your jurisdiction. 

 Factoring out statutorily-exempt activities2, all CMP Highway System (CMPHS) 
intersections within your jurisdiction are operating at LOS E (or the baseline 
level, if worse than E) or better. 

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 1 NEED TO 
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

2. If any, please list those intersections found that are not operating at the CMP LOS standards.  

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

3. Are there improvements to bring these intersections to the CMP LOS standard scheduled 
for completion during the next 18 months or programmed in the first year of the CIP? 

   

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "NO" FOR QUESTION 3 NEED TO 
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS.

4. Has a deficiency plan or a schedule for preparing a deficiency plan been submitted to 
OCTA? 

   

5.  Does the deficiency plan fulfill the following statutory requirements? : 

a. Include an analysis of the causes of the deficiency?    

b. Include a list of improvements necessary to maintain minimum LOS 
standards on the CMPHS and the estimated costs of the improvements? 

   

c. Include a list of improvements, programs, or actions, and estimates of their 
costs, which will improve LOS on the CMPHS and improve air quality? 

   

i. Do the improvements, programs, or actions meet the criteria established 
by South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) (see the CMP 
Preparation Manual)? 

   

___________ 
2The following activities are statutorily-exempt from deficiency determinations: interregional travel, traffic generated by the provision of low 
and very low income housing, construction rehabilitation or maintenance of facilities that impact the system, freeway ramp metering, traffic 
signal coordination by the state or multi-jurisdictional agencies, traffic generated by high-density residential development within 1/4 mile of a 
fixed-rail passenger station, traffic generated by mixed-use residential development within 1/4 mile of a fixed-rail passenger station. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

KimC
Accepted



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

 

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Deficiency Plans (cont.) 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

6. Are the capital improvements identified in the deficiency plan programmed in your 
seven-year CIP? 

   

7. Does the deficiency plan include a monitoring program that will ensure its 
implementation? 

   

8. Does the deficiency plan include a process to allow some level of development to 
proceed pending correction of the deficiency? 

   

9. Has necessary inter-jurisdictional coordination occurred?    

10. 
 

Please describe any innovative programs, if any, included in the deficiency plan:  


 
 
 
 





 

Additional Comments:







 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
APPENDIX C 

Congestion Management Program (CMP) 
   

CMP Monitoring Checklist: Land Use Coordination 

CMP Checklist YES NO N/A 

1. Have you maintained the CMP traffic impact analysis (TIA) process you selected for the 
previous CMP? 

   

a. If not, have you submitted the revised TIA approach and methodology to OCTA 
for review and approval? 

   

2.  Did any development projects require a CMP TIA during this CMP cycle?3    

NOTE: ONLY THOSE AGENCIES THAT CHECKED "YES" FOR QUESTION 2 NEED TO  
ANSWER THE REMAINING QUESTIONS. 

3. If so, how many? ___________ 

4. Please list any CMPHS links & intersections that were projected to not meet the CMP LOS standards (indicate 
whether any are outside of your jurisdiction). 



 






 

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

 _____________________________ 

a. Were mitigation measures and costs identified for each and included in your 
seven-year CIP? 

   

b. If any impacted links & intersections were outside your jurisdiction, did your 
agency coordinate with other jurisdictions to develop a mitigation strategy? 

   

5. If a local traffic model was/will be used, did you follow the data and modeling 
consistency requirements as described in the CMP Preparation Manual (available online 
at http://www.octa.net/pdf/cmpprepmanual.pdf)? 

   

Additional Comments: 



 
 

___ 
 
3Exemptions include: any development generating less than 2,400 daily trips, any development generating less than 1,600 daily trips (if it 
directly accesses a CMP highway), final tract and parcel maps, issuance of building permits, issuance of certificate of use and occupancy, and 
minor modifications to approved developments where the location and intensity of project uses have been approved through previous and 
separate local government actions prior to January 1, 1992. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

KimC
Accepted

KimC
Accepted

KimC
Accepted





   

BINDER 
  Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2019-20 Mitigation Fee Program Review 

Summary 

 






	00 - Spiral Packet Cover Sheet
	01 - Table of Contents
	02 - PPT Cover Sheet
	02 - AER Subcommittee PPT
	Annual eligibility Review (aer) subcommittee 
	Measure M2 eligibility Overview
	Eligibility overview
	AER SUBCOMMITTEE Responsibilities 
	OTHER ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS
	MEETING SCHEDULE
	Pavement Management Plan Review
	PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN (PMP) 
	background
	Program objectives
	Pavement condition index
	Incentives
	Inspection frequency
	QA/QC Model
	2019 conformance
	Congestion Management Program Review
	CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (cmp)
	Cmp Highway System
	CMP
	2019 Conformance
	Mitigation fee program Review
	Mitigation fee program (MFP)
	2019 conformance
	Next steps

	02 - Agenda Cover Sheet
	03 - 09.26.2019 AER Agenda
	03 - Minutes 5.14.2019 Cover Sheet
	04 - AER 5-14-19 Minutes - V5 - FINAL
	04 - PMP Review Summary Cover Sheet
	05 - FY 18-19 PMP Review Summary - Signed
	05 - PMP Certifications Cover Sheet
	06 - PMP Certification - All 14 Agencies
	PMP Certification - Anaheim
	PMP Certification - Brea
	PMP Certification - Cypress
	PMP Certification - Dana Point
	PMP Certification - Irvine
	PMP Certification - La Habra
	PMP Certification - Lake Forest
	PMP Certification - Los Alamitos
	PMP Certification - Newport Beach
	PMP Certification - San Clemente
	PMP Certification - San Juan Capistrano
	PMP Certification - Stanton
	PMP Certification - Tustin
	PMP Certification - County of Orange

	06 - CMP Review Summary Cover Sheet
	07a - CMP Compliance Summary - Signed
	07b - 2019 CMP Highway Systems Map
	07 - CMP Checklists Cover Sheet
	08 - Checklists Cover Sheet
	08 - FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - All Agencies
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Aliso Viejo - REVISED
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Anaheim
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Brea
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Buena Park
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Costa Mesa
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Cypress
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Dana Point
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Fountain Valley
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Fullerton
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Garden Grove
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Huntington Beach
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Irvine
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - La Habra
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - La Palma
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Laguna Beach
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Laguna Hills
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Laguna Niguel
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Laguna Woods
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Lake Forest
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Los Alamitos
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Mission Viejo
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Newport Beach
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Orange
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Placentia
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Rancho Santa Margarita
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - San Clemente
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - San Juan Capistrano
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Santa Ana
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Seal Beach
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Stanton
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Tustin
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Villa Park
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Westminster
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - Yorba Linda - REVISED
	FY 19-20 Congestion Management Program Checklist - County of Orange - REVISED

	08 - MFP Cover Sheet Cover Sheet
	09 - MFP Compliance Summary - Landscape - Signed
	02 - AER Subcommittee PPT - V2.pptx
	Annual eligibility Review (aer) subcommittee 
	Measure M2 eligibility Overview
	Eligibility overview
	AER SUBCOMMITTEE Responsibilities 
	OTHER ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS
	MEETING SCHEDULE
	Pavement Management Plan Review
	PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN (PMP) 
	background
	Program objectives
	Pavement condition index
	Incentives
	Inspection frequency
	QA/QC Model
	2019 conformance
	Congestion Management Program Review
	CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (cmp)
	Cmp Highway System
	CMP
	2019 Conformance
	Mitigation fee program Review
	Mitigation fee program (MFP)
	2019 conformance
	Next steps


